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!NDEF;’ENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Mountain lron, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
remaining fund information of the City of Mountain lron, Minnesota, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility fc?r the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from maternial
misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express oginions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of Mountain Manor Apartments Enterprise Fund which is
both a major fund and 8 percent, 3 percent, and 5 percent, respectively, of the assets, net
position, and revenues of the business-type activities. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for Mountain Manor Apartments Enterprise Fund, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the




circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidencéa we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions. '

Opinions

in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the remaining fund information of the City of Mountain ron, Minnesota, as
of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America,

Other Matfers
Required Supplementary Informatébn

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedule of
funding progress for postemployment benefit plan, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, s required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inguiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota’s basic financial statements. The
individual fund financial statemert and schedule of sources and uses of public funds for the
Mountain lron tax increment district No. 14 listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund financial statement and schedule of sources and uses of public funds for the
Mountain lron tax increment district No. 14 are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or o the basic financial statements
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themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our
audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the
individual fund financial statemert and schedule of sources and uses of public funds for
Mountain Iron tax increment district No. 14 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Goévemment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated May
27, 2015 on our consideration of the City of Mountain lron, Minnesota’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of interrial control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Mountain fron, Minnesota’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Waths Moy Kl LLE

Virginia, Minnesota
May 27, 2015
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

The City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota's rianagement’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of the
City's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. Since this information is designed to focus on
the current year's activities, resuiting chariges, and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with
the City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Governmental activities’ total net position is $10,822,034 of which $8,631,640 represents net
investment in capital assets. :

» Business-type activities have total net position of $7,970,304. Net investment in capital assets
represents $6,450,119 of the total.

» The Mountain lron Economic Development Authority (EDA) has total net position of $3,214 436, of
which $2, 486,697 represents net investment in capital assets.

» The City of Mountain lron's primary government's net position increased by $1,580,419 for the year
ended December 31, 2014. Of the increase $1,320,231 was an increase in the governmental activities’
net position and $260,188 represented the increase in business-type activities' net position.

» The EDA’s net position increased by $358,099.

» The net cost of governmental activities was $2,229,680 for the current fiscal year. The net cost was
funded by general revenues and other items totaling $3,548,911.

> Governmental funds' fund balances increased by $701,040,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATE%MENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements, The City
of Mountain lron, Minnesota's basic finzncial statements consist of three parts: government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. The management’s discussion
and analysis (this section) is required to accompany the basic financial statements, and therefore, is included
as required supplementary information.

There are two government-wide financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of
activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the
City's finances. The fund financial statements explain how governmental activities were financed in the short
term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in
more detail than the government-wide sfatements by providing information about the City's most significant
funds. 3

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information about the City as a whole and
about its activities in a way that helps the reader determine whether the City's financial condition has improved
or declined as a result of the year's activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is sirrilar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of
the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

MANAGEM;ENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
- December 31, 2014

These government-wide statements repoit the City's net position and how they have changed. You can think
of the City’s net position—the difference between assets and liabilities—as one way to measure the City's
financial health or financial position. Increases or decreases in the City's net position is one indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other nonfinancial factors, such as changes
in the City’'s property tax base and state aid and the condition of City buildings also need to be considered in
assessing the overall health of the City.

In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, all activities are shown in the governmental
activities, business-type activities or the Mountain fron EDA component unit:

. Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general
government, public safety, streets, culture and recreation, and economic development. Property taxes
and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

. Business-type activities—The City§ charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of
services it provides. The City's electric, water treatment, wastewater treatment, refuse removal and
recycling sales and services, and the Mountain Manor Apartments rental fees are reported here.

. Component unit—The Mountain lréan Economic Development Authority (EDA) is reported here.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide cletailed information about the significant funds—not the City as a
whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City
establishes some funds to help it contrcl and manage money for a particular purpose or to show that it is
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The City's two kinds of funds—
governmental and proprietary—use different accounting methods.

. Governmental funds—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This
method measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City's programs. We describe *he relationship (or differences) between governmental activities
(reported in the statement of net position and the statement of activities) and governmental funds in a
reconciliation statement following sach governmental fund financial statement.

. Proprietary funds—When the City charges customers for the services it provides—whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City—these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the statement of net
position and the statement of activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary
funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA
MANAGEM?ENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
 December 31, 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information?that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial stateients.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents the required
supplementary information for budgetary comparison schedule and funding progress for postemployment
benefit plan. Individual fund financial statements and schedule of sources and uses of public funds for
Mountain Iron’s tax increment district are presented as supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANAL?.YSIS

As noted earlier, net position may servé over time as a useful indicator of a City’'s financial position. The
following tables show that in the case of fhe City of Mountain Iron, assets exceeded liabilities by $18,792,338,
an increase from the prior year. -

Table 1
Net Assets
Governirental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assets $ 4722681 ¢ 5211641 % 2417.857 $ 2511297 % 7,140,538 $ 7,722,938
Capital assets 10,434,640 | 9.839.151 7,956,482 7688518 18:391.122 17,527,669
Total assets 15,157,324 15,050,792 10,374,338 --10,199.815 25.531.660 25 250607
Long-term liabilities 36141473 . 3,659,879 2,027,917 2087595 5,642,090 5,747 A74
Other liabilities 724114 1,889,110 376118 402 104 1.097.232 2291214
Total liahilities 4335287 5548989 2.404.035 2489699 6.739.322 8.038.688
Net position :
Net investmentin :
capital assets 8631640 | 7,739,151 6,450,119 6,092,847 15,081,759 13,831,998
Restricted 1:166.963 - | 1.032.239 110,948 97,927 1,277,909 1,130,166
Unrestricted 1.023.431 | - 730413 1,409,238 1,519,342 2.432.670 2.249 755
Total net position 510,822,034 $.9501,803 $.7.970304 $.7710116 $.18792.336 $.17.211.919

Net position of the City's govemmentai activities increased by 13.9 percent ($10,822,034 compared {o
$9,501,803). Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations without constraints estabhshed by debt covenants, enabling legisiation, or other legal requirements
increased from a $730,413 surplus at Decf:ember 31,2013 to a $1,023,431 surplus at the end of this year.

Net position of the City's busmess-type activities increased by 3.4 percent (37,970,304 compared to
$7,710,1186).




Revenues
Program revenues:
Fees, fines, charges and
other charges for services
Operating grants and
caontributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:
Property and other taxes
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs
Other general revenues
Total revenues

Program expenses.
General government
Public safety
Streets
Cuiture and recreation
Economic development
Interest
Electric utility
Water treatment
Wastewater treatment
Refuse removal and recycling
Mountain Manor Apartments

Total program expenses

Excess (deficiency) before

extraordinary item and transfers

Extraordinary item — insurance recovery

Transfers

increase in net position
Net position, January 1
Prior period adjustment

Net position, December 31

CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA
MANAGEM?ENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

5 Table 2
- Changes in Net Assets

Governmental

_ Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 341,041 § 353737 $ 3912250 $ 3,697,169 $ 4253291 $ 4,050,906
6,231 5,246 : - 6231 5,246
1,162,820 991,373 - 45000 1162920 1,036,373
1,527,866 1,351,180 - - 1,527,866 1,351,180
2.378,363 2,344,556 i . 2,378363 2,344,556
32,600 63,012 57,476 (9.215) 90,376 53,797
5449221 5100104 3969726 3732954 9419047 8,842,058
1,169,511 1,341,707 - L 1,189,511 1,341,707
747,554 764,920 . . 747,554 764,920
1,150,222 1,168,418 “ - 1,150,222 1,168,418
614,636 504,978 . - 614,836 604,978
L 224,157 - - : 224,157
57,749 70,574 - - 57,749 70,574
- - 2,524,359  2403,862 2,524,359 2,403,862
. - 349,409 312,515 349,409 312,515
- . 545,646 499,488 545,646 499,488
. . 433,602 418,477 433,602 418477
- . 245,740 224,287 245740 224287
3739672 4174754 4098756 3858629 7.838628 8033383
1,709,449 934,350  (120,030)  (125675) 1,580,419 808,675
. « X 132,766 e 132,766
(389,218) _ (883,633) . 389218 1050767 . 167,134
1,320,2?:31 . 50,717 260,188 1,057,858 1,580,419 1,108,575
9,501,603 9,372,998 7,710,116 6,800,799 17211919 16,173,797
L . 78,088 - _(148.541) . (70,453)

$MM $.9.501.803 $.7.970304 $.7.710,116 $.18,792.338 § 17,211,919




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

MANAGEM%ENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
- December 31, 2014

Governmental Activities

The most significant revenues of the gcvernmental activities are grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs at 44% of revenues. Capital grants and contributions, 21% of revenues, include grants for
major projects or purchases of equtpment Property taxes levied for general purposes amount to $1,482,381,
27% of revenues.

General government expense is the most &gmf:eant (31%), followed by streets (31%), public safety (20%) and
culture and recreation {(16%).

Governmental revenues increased during§2014 because the City recognized a portion of the special legislation
taconite production funding received, but not earned, in 2013. Our taxpayers paid $1,527,866 in property and
other taxes during the current year, whichi is an increase of $176,686.

The cost of all governmental actmtxet, this year was $3,739,872 compared to 34,174,754 last year.
Governmental expenses decreased by $434 882 in the current year. The most significant decrease occurred
in the City's economic development program due to projects completed last year. The most significant
increase occurred in the City's culture and recreation program due to campground and park repairs and
improvements. :

Business-Type Activities

Revenues and tfransfers in of the Cat\'rs business-type activities were $4,358,944 and expenses were
$4,098,756, (see Table 2). There was an increase in net position of $260,188 during the year ended
December 31, 2014, which compares o an increase in net position of $1,057,858 for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Factors driving this result include:

Operations produced a loss of $163,297 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The wastewater
treatment enterprise fund recorded the most significant operating loss of $143,179. The electric utility
enterprise fund recorded an operating loss of $3,493 and Mountain Manor Apartments enterprise fund
recorded an operating loss of $21,384. The water treatment enterprise fund and the refuse removal
and recycling fund each recorded opeffrating income of $907 and $3,852 respectively.

The electric utility enterprise fund re”elved capital contributions in the amount of $442,418 from the
City for a used vehicle and the electric substation capitalized during the current year. This is a
significant decrease from the prior vear when the water treatment enterprise fund and wastewater
treatment enterprise fund received caputal contributions from the City in the amount of $573,823 each.

Mountain iron EDA Component Unit Ag:tsv:ty

The Mountain Iron EDA had an mcreas,e5 in net position of $358,099 for the year ended December 31, 2014,
Net program revenues over expenses were $(239,087). General revenues of taxes, interest earnings,
miscellaneous revenues and gain on sa!e of capital assets were $597,186.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CtTY’SéFUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources, In particular, the unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

9




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

MANAGEM;ENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
- December 31, 2014

At December 31, 2014, the City's governmental funds reported total ending fund balances of $3,896,437, an
increase of $701,040 in comparison with the prior year. Assigned fund balance, which is intended to be used
for cash flow, insurance and buildings, made up nearly 67% or $2,636,814 of the total ending fund balance.
The restricted fund balance of $1,259,623 is considered unavailable for appropriation for general operations.
More detailed information about the City’s fund balances is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements,

The debt service fund recorded an incréase in fund balance of $92,660 compared to the decrease in fund
balance of $684,240 last year. Other financing sources included a $350,000 transfer from the general fund
and $53,200 transfer from the enterprise f‘unds for debt principal and interest payments.

The capital projects fund recorded an ir{crease in fund balance of $115,553, resuiting in an assigned fund
palance of $22,608. Other financing sources included a $497,079 transfer from the general fund for capital
projects. ?

Proprietary Funds :
The proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail. ;

The electric utility enterprise fund accounts for the electric operations of the City. In 2014, operating revenues
increased by $147,985 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses also increased by $120,497. The
electric operations produced an operating loss of $3,493 in 2014. A transfer out of 515,000 was made to
governmental funds. A capital contributicn of $433,820 from the City was recorded for an electric substation
capitalized in 2014, A capital asset with book value of $8,508 was also transferred from the City. These
transactions resulted in an increase of $446,544 in net position in the current year.

The water treatment enterprise fund accounts for the water operations of the City. In 2014, operating revenues
increased by $2,398 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses increased by $37,943. In 2014,
operating income of $907 was recorded compared to an operating income of 336,452 in the prior year.
Interest expense charged to the water operations was $17,713. Transfers to the debt service governmental
fund were made in the amount of $28,200 during 2014. These transactions resulted in a decrease of $43,842
in net position in the current year. ‘

The wastewater treatment enterprise fund accounts for the wastewater treatment operations of the City. In
2014, operating revenues decreased by $6,203 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses increased by
$46,742 in the current year. In 2014, an operating loss of $143,179 was recorded compared to an operating
foss of $90,234 in the prior year. Intersst expense charged to the wastewater treatment operations was
$11.023. These transactions resulted in 2 decrease of $130,031 in net position in the current year.

The refuse removal and recycling enterp-ise fund accounts for the refuse removal and recycling operations of
the City. In 2014, operating revenues increased $42,359 compared to the prior year. Operating expenses
increased by $15,125. In 2014, operating income of $3,852 was recorded compared to an operating loss of
$23,382 in the prior year. A transfer out of $10,000 to the debt service fund was recorded for its portion of
funding for the debt payments. These transactions resulted in an increase of $16,885 in net position in the
current year. f

The Mountain Manor Apartments enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the Mountain Manor
Apartments. In 2014, operating revenues increased by 37,736 compared to the prior year. Operating
expenses increased by $22,816 compared to the prior year. In 2014, an operating loss of $21,384 was
recorded compared to an operating loss of $6,304 in the prior year. Interest expense charged to the Mountain
Manor Apartments operations was $15.279. These transactions resulted in a decrease of $29,368 in net
position in the current year.

10




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESQOTA

MANAGENfENT‘S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
- December 31, 2014

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHL!GHTS

Qver the course of the year, the City did not revise the general fund budget. The actual expenditures were
$115,606 under the final budget amounts. The most significant negative variance in the amount of (327,489)
occurred in the City public safety department. Resources available for appropriation were above the final
budgeted amounts. The City received more taxes, intergovernmental aids, licenses and permits, charges for
services, and interest than expected. '

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADM!NISTE?AT!ON
Capital Assets

At the end of 2014, the City’s primary govemment had $18,391,122 invested in a broad range of capital assets
{net of accumulated depreciation), including land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment and izcensed vehicles. (See Table 3 below.) This amount represents
a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $863,453 over last year. The Mountain lron Economic
Development Authority component unit had $6,033,351 invested in capital assets, which consisted of land and
infrastructure.

: Table 3
Capital Assets at Year-end
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Land $ 408,300 % 409300 $ 26370 % 26,370 $ 435670 $ 435670
Construction in progress 1,214,372 | 1,124,148 ~ - 1,214,372 1,124,149
Land improvements 698,144 . - 747,880 - = 698,144 747,880
Buildings 2,371,329 2,428,545 3,872.287 3,584,926 6243616 6,013,471
infrastructure 4,837,010 ' 4,226,994 3,700,721 3,842,941 8,537,731 8,089,835
Machinery and equipment 527,282 . 539,968 35,548 64,504 562,830 604,472
Licensed vehicles 377,203 - 362,315 321,556 169,777 698,759 532,092

Totals $.10,434640 $.9.839.151 $.7956482 $7688518 $18391.127 $17.527.669
EDA
Land $ 2,533,256 $ 2533256 % - 8 - $ 2533256 % 2,533,256
infrastructure 3500085 3572262 = - 3,500,095 3572262

Totals $._6.0333581 $M,Q§ $ -3 - $.6,033351 $.6,105518

This year's major additions included cocts for relocation of County Road 102 water and sewer Iines Unity
Drive extension and bike lane, 2014 street and sidewalk projects, two Ford trucks, a garbage truck and
packer, replacement of the electric subst«}tion and completion of the civil defense alarm system.

More detailed information about the City’s; capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

11




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

Debt

At year-end, the City had $3,309,363 m long-term debt outstanding for the primary government versus
$3,695,671 last year—as shown in Table 4. The Mountain iron EDA component unit had $3,546,654 in long-
term debt ocutstanding, which was $3,546,§561 last year.

: Table 4
Outstanding Debt, at Year-end
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
General obligation bonds }

{backed by the City) $ 1,148,000 $ 1,260,000 & - 8 - - $-1,148,000 - $-1,260,000
Refunding bonds 555,000 840,000 - - 655,000 840,000
Notes payable - - 583,363 596 671 583,363 596,671
Water revenue refunding bonds - - 450,000 500,800 450,000 500,000
Wastewater general obligation f

revenue note ~ - 473,000 499 000 473,000 498 000

Total $.1.803.000 $.2100000 $.1.506363 $.1.595671 $.3.3000363 330895671
Component Unit
EDA,
2014 2013

State loan $.3.546.654 § 3,546,661

The State limits the amount of net debt téﬂat the City can issue to 3 percent of the market value of all taxable
property in the City. The City's outstandmg qualifying net debt of $635,127 is significantly below this
$5,122,995 State-imposed limit.

Additional information on the City's tongntt?arm debt can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed offxc;als considered many factors when setting the 2015 budget, tax rates,
and fees that will be charged for the busmess -type activities.

> City General Fund expenditures zrgcreased $6,376 over 2014.
» City property taxes did not increas?e in 2015

¥ Development of the renewable suéstainab!e energy park, County Road 102 development, Unity Second
Addition, and South Forest Grove will have a great impact on property tax revenues for the City.

The City's 2015 capital budget calls for it ;to spend another $982 155.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information, or for the separate
financial statements for the Mountain Irort EDA and Mountain Manor Apartments, should be addressed {o the
City's Administrator, Craig J. Wainio, City of Mountain lron, 8586 Enterprise Drive South, Mountain iron,
Minnesota 55768, or e-mail cwainio@ci.mountain-iron.mn.us.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

§3TATEMENT OF NET POSITION
: December 31, 2014

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental - Business-type
Activities Activities Total EDA
ASSETS :
Cagh and cash equivalents : $ - 2852638 $ 681,396 $ 3,534,034 % 707,077
Investrients § 1,515,233 625,415 2,140,648 -
Taxes receivable ; 42,056 - 42,056 -
Special assessments receivable : 128,216 - 128,216 -
Accounts receivable : 134,017 547 259 681,276 ~
Grants receivable f 12,672 - 12,672 -
Dther receivable : - 6,004 8,004 -
Due from camponent unit i 10,472 - 10,472 -
Due from other governments f 27,377 - 27,377 -
{.oans receivable : - - - 105,821
Inventaries : - 411,539 411,539 -
Prepaid items : - 1,287 1,287 -
Restricted assets: :
Temporarily restricted cash and cash equivalerts - 144,957 ' 144,957 -
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land : 408,300 26.370 435,670 2,533,256
Construction-in pragress : 1,214,372 - 1.214,372 -
Capital assets netof accumulated depreciation: :
Land improvemsnts : 698,144 - 698144 -
Buildings : 2,371,329 3,872,287 6,243,616 3,500,095
Infrastructure 4,837,010 3,700,721 8,537,731 -
Machinery and equipment : 527 282 35,548 562.830 -
Licensed vehicles : 377,203 321,556 698,759 -
TOTAL ASSETS 15,157 321 10,374,339 25,531,660 6,846,249
LIABILITIES :
Accounts payable : 121,016 256,151 377,167 74,687
Salarias payable : 74,818 28,101 102,719 ~
Accrued interest payable : 26,181 6,158 32,339 <
Due to primary government f - - - 10,472
Customer deposits : 8,600 85,708 94308 E
Unearned revenues : 480,699 - 490,699 -
Noreurrent liabilities: :
Due within.one year :
Bonds and notes payable : 303,000 90,762 393,762 -
Severance payable 3 ~ 8,318 8316 -
Due inmore than one year 5
Bonds and notes payable 1,500,000 1,415,601 2,915,601 3,546,654
Other postemployment benefits : 1,753,146 498,940 2,252,086 -
Severance payable f 58,027 14,298 72325 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,335,287 2404035 6,739,322 3,631,813
NET POSITION :
Net investmentin capital assets : 8,831,840 6,450,119 15,081,759 2,486,697
Restricted for: :
Debt service 5 1,166,963 110,946 1277909 -
Unrestricted 1,023,431 1,409,239 2,432,670 727,738
TOTAL NET POSITION : $ 10822034 § 7,970,304 $ 18,792,338 ¢ 3,214,436

The accompanying fotes are aa integral past of theéxse financial statements.
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FunctionsiPrograms

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General government

Public safety

Streets

Culture-and recreation
Interest on fong-tepm debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Electric utility
Water treatment
Wastewater treatment
Refuse removal and recycling
Mountain Manor Apartments

Total Business-type Activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

COMPONENT UNIT
EDA

CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Program Revenues

Operating Grants and

. General Revenues

Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for specific purposes
Franchise taxes
Mineral rents.and royalties
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of capital assets

. Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

CHANGE IN-NET POSITION

NET POSITION - JANUARY 1

NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ﬁhese financial statements.
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Expenses Charges for Services Contributions

% 1,169,511 $ 164,878 $ 4,956
747,554 - 1,278

1,150,222 118,430 .

514,836 59,933 -

57,749 - -

3,739,872 341,041 6,231

2,524,359 2,541,672 -

349,408 332,603 -

545,646 391,444 .

433,602 437,454 .

245,740 209,077 <

4,098,756 3,912,250 -

$ 7,838,628 $ 4,253 291 $ 6,231
3 314,087  $ 75000  $ -




Ne{ {Expense} Revenue and Changes in Net Position

- Primary Government

Component Unit

Capital Grants and Governmental Business-type
Contributions Activities Activities Total EDA
15,403 {984,474) - $ (984,474)
- {746,279) - (748,279)
1,147,517 113,725 - 113,728
- (554,903) - (554,903)
- (57,749) - {57 749)
1,162,920 (2,229,880) - (2,229,680)
- - 17,313 17,313
i - (16,8086) {16,8086)
. . {154,202) (154,202)
- - 3,852 3,852
- - (36,663) (36,6563)
- ~ {186,506} (186,506}
1,162,920 (2,229,680) {186,508} (2,416,186
- {239,087)
1,482,381 - 1,482,381 30615
- - - 81,318
23,710 - 23,710 “
21,775 - 21,778 ~
2,378,363 - 2,378,363 -
27,091 36,219 63,310 2,657
- 7.000 7,000 500
5,808 14,257 20,066 482,085
(389,218) 389,218 - -
3,549,911 446,694 3,996,605 597,186
1,320,231 260,188 1,580,419 358,099
9,501,803 7,710,116 17,211,918 2,856,337
10,822,034 7,970,304 $ 18,792,338 $ 3,214,436
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ASSETS

Cash and cash-eguivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable

Special assessments receivable
Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

BDue from companent unit

Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOQURCES, AND FUND BALANGES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Sataries payable
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Unavailable revenue - special assessments

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Assigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2014
Qther
Governmental
Fund -
Charitable

City Projects Gambling Total
: Debt Service Capital Special Governmentatl

General Fund Fund Projects Fund .. Revenue Fund Funds
$ 1,939,834 $ 472,897 3 432,326 $ 7481 $ 2852638
b760,248 754,985 - - 1,515,233
42 056 - - - 42058
- 128,216 - - 128,218
17,687 - 116,430 ~ 134,017
- - 12,672 - 12,672
10,472 - = < 10472
27377 - - - 27,377
$ 2797674 5 1356098 § 561428 § 7481 4722681
$: 72,895 $ - $ 48,121 $ - % 121,016
: 74618 - = - 74,618
8,600 - - - 8,600
- - 490,699 - 490,609
156,113 - 538,820 - 694 933
34,836 - - - 34,836
- 96,475 = # 96,475
34.836 96,475 - -~ 131,311
: - 1,259,623 - - 1,259,623
. 2:606,725 - 22,608 7,481 2,636,814
2,606,725 1,259,623 22,608 7.481 3,896,437
$ 1,356,088 $. 561,428 $ 7,481 $ 4722681

5 2797674

“he accompanying notes are an integral part of thes@a financial statements.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALAN?CE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT

OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014

Amounts reported-for governmental acﬁi:ivities in the statement of net position are
different because: 5

TOTAL FUND BALANCES, GOVERN;MENTAL FUNDS

Capital assets used in govemmentéal activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deferred infiows of resources in governmental funds are susceptible to full
accrual on the government-wide statements.

interest payable on long-term debt is susceptible to full accrual on the
govemnment-wide statements. :

Long-term habilities, including bonds and notes payable, other post
employment benefils and severance payable are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore not reported in the governmental funds.

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAE?- ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral pa{rt of these financial statements.
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$ 3,896,437
10,434,640
131,311
(26,181)
(3,614,173)

$ 10822034




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVEN}JES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
. Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Taxes

Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines

Gifts and contriibutions

Investment earnings

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety

Streets

Culture and recreation
Debt Service

Principal

Interest and other charges
Capital Outlay

General government

Public safety

Streets

Culture and recreation

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
{USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Sale of capital assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31

Other
Governmental
Fund -
Charitable
City Projects Gambling Total
: Debt Service Capital Special Governmental
General Fund Fund Projects Fund = Revenue Fund Funds

$ 1525082 % - % -8 . 1525082
: - 32,554 . - 32,654
38,835 - - - 38,835
2,378,383 N 1,157,512 - 3,535,875
173,521 - 116,430 - 289,951
13,531 - - - 13,531

: - N - 4,956 4,958
12,943 14,014 134 - 27,091
4142275 46,668 1,274,076 4,956 5.467.975
983,904 - 30,382 4,440 1,018,726
638,989 - - - 688,989
675,939 - 893 - 676,832
459,862 - 22718 : 482,580
. 297,000 - X 297,000

- 60,208 - - 60,208

. - 442652 . 442652

- - 25,645 . 79,645

- - 1,118,562 - 1,118,562

. - 16,750 . 10,750
2,8333_694 357,208 1,655,602 4,440 4,825,944
1,3@33,581 (310,540) (381,526) 516 542,031
; . 403,200 497,079 - 900,279
(847,079) - - - {847 079}
5,809 - - - 5,809
(841,270) 403,200 497 079 - 59,009
432,311 92,680 115,553 516 701,040
2,114,414 1,166,963 (92,945) 6,965 3,195,397
$ 22608 $ 7481 § 3896437

$ 2,606,725 $ 1259623

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tfﬁese financial statements.
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CITY GF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEME}NT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNM%ENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Ye;ar Ended December 31, 2014

Amounts.reported for governmental activities m the statement of activities are different because:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTI;\L GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 701,040

Governmental funds report outlays for caﬁjxtal assets as expenditures,
however, in the statement of activities, thf'-‘ cost of those assets is depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital assets 1,593,002

Less current year depreciation (555,085)
Net capital assets 1,037,907

Capital assets were contributed to the gziectrxc Utility Enterprise Fund (442.418)

Some revenues reparted in the statemenf of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefo e are not reported as revenues in
governmental funds. :

Change in unavailable revenue - delinqﬁent property taxes 2784

Change in unavailable revenue - specnal assessments (27,246)
Net change {24,462)

Repayment of debt principal is-an expendiiure in the.governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term Habiﬁtiegs in the statement of net position. 297,000

Some expenses reported in the statemenst of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefo;e are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Change in-accrued interest payable on giong—term debt 2458
Change in severance payable 5303
Change in other postemployment benefrts payable (256,597)

Net change | (248,836)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNM?ENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 1,320,231

The accompanying notes-are an integral pafn of these financial statements.
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ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cashand cash eguivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
inventories
Prepaid items
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and ¢ash squivalents
Reserye account
Escrow deposits
Tenant security deposits
Total restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets

tand

Buildings

Infrastructure

Machinery and squipment

Licensed vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depraciation)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payabile

Salaties payable

Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits payable

Bonds and notes payable - curent
Severance payable ~current

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds and hotes payable
Other postamployment benefit obligation
Severance payable
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for other purposes

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

(?ZiTY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Business+ype Activities - Enterprise Funds

Refuse Mountain
: Water Wastewater . Removal and Manor
Electric Utility Treatment Treatment Recycling Apartments
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fand Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ l 25,198 § . ..201,708 $ 241,876 $ 107,144 $ 5,470 $:681,396
169,569 69,924 282,736 103,186 - 625,415
389,353 45,382 47225 61,288 4,011 547,258
- - : < 5,004 6,004
5345,369 66,170 - - - 411,539
: : - - . 1.287 1,287
1,329,488 383,184 574,837 271,618 16,772 2,272,800
- - - + 110,946 110,948
- - - - 27,000 27,000
- - - - 7.011 7.011
- - - - 144,957 144,957
18,034 . . - 8,336 26,370
5?41 987 2,190,764 2,718,281 12,761 1,678,859 7,342,652
5745,343 3.627.796 4,652,597 - - 9,025,736
: - 80,270 281,060 - 318,087 657,417
325214 B 20,546 530,665 “ 876,425
(367,744) (3,210,310} {4,223,233) (255,038) {1,315,773% {9.872.118)
3862834 2. 668,520 3,449.231 288,388 587 509 7.956.482
362,834 2,668,520 3,449,231 288,383 832,468 8 101,438
1 ‘3892,323 3,051,704 4,021,068 560,006 849,238 10,374,338
3224,629 5,470 8,540 7.842 9,670 256,151
121,745 - 6,356 - - 28,101
- 1,386 3,544 - 1,218 6,158
78,448 1,408 - - 5,855 85,708
; < 50,000 27,000 pe 13,762 90,762
: - B - 8,318 - 8318
;324,822 58,271 45,440 16,158 30,505 475,196
E 400,000 446,000 s 569,801 1,415,801
252,735 60,648 172,645 12,912 ~ 438,940
14,298 - - . - 14,298
267,033 460,548 618,645 12,912 569,601 1.928,839
3591 ,855 518,919 664,085 29,670 600,106 2,404,035
3862,834 2,218,520 2,976,231 288,388 104,146 6,450,118
i N - - - 110,846 110,946
437,634 314,265 380,752 242,548 34,040 1,409,239
$ 1 ,5300‘468 $ 2,532,785 $ 3,336,983 $ 530,836 3249132 $ 7,870,304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ﬁnjancial statements.
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CiTY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVE?NUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
: PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Refuse .- Mauntain
: Water Wastewater  Removal and Manor
Electric Utility Treatment Treatment Recycling Apartments
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

REVENUES

Charges for sales and services $ 2,520,866 $ 332,803 $ 351,444 $ 437,454 $- 209,677 $ 3,891,444
OPERATING EXPENSES :

Cost.of sales 1,773,052 - B - - 1,770,052
Salaries 292,074 85,148 116,767 124,386 39,795 658,170
Employes benefits 141,209 37,577 54,491 54,468 3.044 290,787
Contract services - - 28,570 - 40,836 67,406
Insurance 12,516 6,230 14,664 7,221 15,550 56,181
Miscellaneous 53,824 7.820 31,755 13,516 6,862 110,777
Other postemployment benefits 71,274 18,233 34,808 3,318 - 127,630
Repairs.and maintenance 112,263 40,477 25,853 25,500 23,907 226,000
Solid waste management and tipping fees - - - 138,138 E 139,138
Supplies 25,068 12,153 15,524 25,728 2,422 31,895
Telephone 2,937 32 1,632 889 1,670 65,860
Utilities - 40,721 64,829 ~ 28,077 133,627
Depreciation 437,1 42 83,305 147,730 39,643 68,298 386,18

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2.5254,359 331,698 534,623 433,602 230,461 4:054,741

OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) (3,493) 507 (143,179) 3,852 (21,384 {163,297)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) :
investment income 5 556 1,164 24,171 5,033 295 36,219
Miscellaneous income 23,806 - - - 7,000 27.806
Interast expense - (17,713) {11,023) - {15,279} (44.015)
Gain (foss) on sale of capital assets 3.743) - - 18,000 - 14,257

TOTAL NONOCPERATING REVENUES :

(EXPENSES) 22,619 (18,549) 13,148 23,033 {7,984} 34,267

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL :

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 1%9,1 26 (15,842) {130,031 26,885 {29,368) {129.030)
Capital contributions 442,418 : : - - 442,418
Transfers ouwt {15,000) (28,200) - {10,600) - {53,200

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4456,544 (43,842} {130,031) 16,885 (29,368) 260,188
TOTAL NET POSITION - JANUARY 1 8533(924 2,876.827 3,487,014 514,081 278 500 7,710.118

TOTAL NET POSITION - BECEMBER 31~ § 1,3@0,468 $ 2532785 $ 3356983 % 530938 . $ 249132 - §.7.970,304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these firéanciai statements.
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SHTY OF MOUNTAIN (RON, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Refuse Nountain
Etectric Water Wastewater . Removal and Manor
Utility Treatment Treatment Recycling - Apartments
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise - Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $2,568,727 - § 333,825 % 390,589 $ 429772 3 218404 53,939,317
Cash paid to suppliers (2,266,604) {222,547} (274.560) (267,905} {120.072) (3,151,688}
Cash paid to employees (201,844) (87.750) {80.666) (115.967) {39,799 (626,022}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY -
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,279 23,528 25,363 45,900 56,5837 161,607
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Yransfers out to other funds {15,000) (28,200) - (10,000) - {53,200
Miscelianeous income 20,806 ~ - - 7,000 27806
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,806 {28.200) - {10,000) 7,000 {25.394)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES h
Purchase or congtruction of capital assets - - - {213,046} {4,172} {217,218)
Principal paid on long-term debt B {50,000} {26,000) “ {13,308) {89,308)
interest paid-on long-term debt - {17.800) {11,218} - {15,398} {44.4186)
Proceeds from sale of assets 1,811 ~ - 18,000 - 19,811
NET CASH PROVIDED{USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,811 {67.800) {37,218) {195,046} {32,878) {331,131
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investrments 100,000 - 15,0600 137,000 - 252,800
Purchase of Investhents - - {62,600) - - {62,000)
interest and dividends received 4,668 1,395 23,385 3,692 298 33,435
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 104,668 1,395 {23,615) 140,692 295 223.435
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 122,564 (71,077) {35,470) {18,454) 30,954 28,617
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1
tinchuding $117.553 in restricted accounts) 2,634 272,785 277,348 125,598 118473 797,836
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31
{including $144,957 in restricted accounts) : % .125188 $°201,708 $ 241,876 $ 107,144 $ 150,427 % 826,353
RECONCHLIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)§
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING |
ACTIVITIES :
Operating income {loss) 3 (3493 % 807 $ {143,179) & 3,852 $ (21,384 . § (163,297)
Adjustrments 1o reconcile oparating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 47,142 83,306 147,730 39,643 68,298 386,118
Changes in assets and liabilities
{Increase) decrease iy
Accounts receivable 50,216 1,382 (855) {7,682) 724 43,785
Other teceivables - - - - 8,321 8.321
inventories {62,999) (84,313) - B g {117:312)
Prepaid items - - - - (53} {83}
{ncrease {decrease) in:
Accounts payable (18,452) (4,991 (4,434) 1.668 2,343 (23,870}
Salaries payable 2,054 - 908 (444) - 2.518
Customer deposits (2,355} {160} - - {1,718) {4.233)
Severance payable {2,478) - - 8,316 - 5,838
Other:-postemployment benefit obligation 654 {2.602) 25,193 547 - 23,782
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 10,279 § - 23,528 $ 25383 - § 45900 % 56537 § 181607
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Contributions of cagital assets from primary goverament $ 442418 § -8 S -8 woig 442 418

The accompanying notes are-an integral part of these ﬁrilanciat statements.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SiGNIFl%CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting
and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies and practices are
discussed in subsequent sections of this Note.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Mountain iron, anésota a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, is a
statutory city, governed by an eiected city council which consists of one mayor and four
councilors. :

The City complies with GAAP and includes all component units for which the City appointed a
voting majority of the organizatior’s board; and the City is either able to impose its will on the
organization or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists. As a result of applying these
component unit criteria, the Mountain Iron Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) is
considered a component unit and is presented in the City’s financial statements as a blended
component unit, meaning it is reported as if it were a part of the City. The Mountain lron
Economic Development Authority (EDA) is considered a component unit of the City and
operates as a separate legal eniity, and meets the component unit criteria {o be discretely
presented in the City's government-wide financial statements. Each component unit prepares
separate financial statements, which can be obtained by contacting the City Administrator's
office, 8586 Enterprise Drive South Mountain fron, Minnesota 55768.

Blended Component Unit

The HRA was created in 1974 by the City to assume primary responsibility for housing and
redevelopment services in the local area. In 1980 and 1881, the HRA entered into two
promissory notes with Rural Development (a division of the United States Department of
Agriculture) for the construction ¢f a 39-unit non-profit housing development, Mountain Manor
Apartments (the Project), located in the City of Mountain iron, Minnesota. The Project has a
rental agreement with Rural Development for interest credit and rental assistance; and, is
regulated by Rural Development as to rent charges and operating methods. Mountain Manor
Apartments accounts for all PmJet,t reporting for the City. The HRA governing board consists of
City Council members, _

Discretely Presented Componer}t Unit
The EDA was created in 2004 to {assume‘primary responsibility for development activities within
the City. The EDA entered into a State loan for the construction of a manufacturing facility, The

EDA accounts for the building lease revenues from the manufacturing facility and revolving loan
funds. The EDA governing board is appointed by the City Council.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SlGNiFIﬁCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certair legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accounteble.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by the given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operatiorial or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not propery included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues, :

Fund Financial Statements :

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial managemert and to demonstrate legal compliance, Separate statements
are presented for governmental and proprietary activities. These statements present each
major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major funds are
aggregated and presented in a sir; gle column.

The description of the funds mc!uqled in this report are as follows:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those fuﬁnds through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance
of current financial resources. The City has presented the following governmental funds:

Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund is used to acc}ount for and report all financial resources not accounted for
and reported in another fund.

The Debt Service Fund is used tc account for and report financial resources that are restricted
to expenditure for principal and inﬁerest.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SlGN!F!C}ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The City Projects Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial resources
that are committed to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-
related outflows financed by proprietary funds.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

The Charitable Gambling Special Rf;evenue Eund is used to account for and report the proceeds
from lawful gambling contributions..

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
acorual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income,
financial position and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the statement of net
position. The City has presented the following proprietary funds:

Major Proprietary Funds:

The Electric Utility Enterprise Fur}d is used to account for the revenues generated from the
charges for electric services to thegresidential and commercial users of the City.

The Water Treatment Enterprise iFund is used to account for revenues generated from the
charges for water services to the residential and commercial users of the City.

The Wastewater Treatment Enteﬁprise Fund is used to account for revenues generated from
the charges for wastewater treatmant services provided to the residential and commercial users
of the City. i

The Refuse Removal and Recvclirﬁcz Enterprise Fund is used to account for revenues generated
from the charges for refuse removal and recycling services provided to the residential and
commercial users of the City. ‘

The Mountain Manor Apartmenfs Enterprise Fund is used to account for the' revenues
generated from rent charges to tenants.

C. Measurement Focus and Ba{sis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of
the measurement focus applied.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SlGNIFI?CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities
(whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the operating
statements present increases {revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized at the time the liabilty is incurred. Property taxes are generally recognized as
revenues in the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
when all requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricied resources as they are needed. Depreciation
expense can be specifically identified by program and is included in the direct expenses of each
program. interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the statement of activities. Generally, the effect of material interfund activity has
been removed from the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e.,, when they become both “measurable and available”). "Measurable” means the
amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The
City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.
Grant revenue is recorded in the year in which the related expenditure is made. Other revenue
is considered available if collectec within one year. Expenditures are generally recorded when a
liability is incurred. However, expenditures are recorded as prepaid for approved disbursements
incurred in advance of the year n which the item or service is to be used and debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to severance payable and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, special assessments, and loan repayments are considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurabie and available only when cash is received by the
government. :

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of tha City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers. Operating
expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SlGN!FIé’JANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement af cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash
on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments purchased with a maturity of three
months or less.

E.

1

2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

7)

8)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred I?nﬂows of Resources, and Net Position or Fund Balances

Cash balances for all funds of §the City are maintained on a combined basis and invested fo
the extent possible, in allowatie short-term investments. All investments are stated at fair
value. 5

Receivables from and payabk%es to external parties are reported separately and are not
offset in the proprietary fund financial statements and business-type activities of the
government-wide financial stataments, unless a right of offset exists.

The enterprise funds report accounts receivable net of uncollectible accounts. The
allowance amounts of $1,500 in the water enterprise fund, $2,500 in the wastewater
enterprise fund: $5,000 in the refuse removal and recycling enterprise fund, and $15,000 in
the electric enterprise fund were estimated using an average of prior years’ accounts written
off. :

The City has no significant inventories in the General Fund and records supplies and
materials as expenditures when purchased. Enterprise funds’ inventories are valued at cost,
on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, and the cost of these inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted assets are cash§ and cash equivalents whose use is limited by legal
requirements. Restricted assets are reported only in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. '

Any residual balances outstaﬁxding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances’.
Outstanding balances between funds are reported as “‘due to/from other funds”.

Legally authorized transfers a@e treated as interfund transfers and are iné!uded in the results
of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Certain payments to vendors greﬂect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in koth government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and licensed vehicles, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements, and the component unit.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S!GNIF!C;:ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital assets are capitalized a; historical cost, or estimated historical cost for assets where
actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. General infrastructure assets acquired
prior to January 1, 2004 are not reported in the basic financial statements. The City
maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing machinery and equipment and
$10,000 or more for capitalizing land, land improvements, buildings, infrastructure and
vehicles. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend asse: lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. When assets are no longer needed by the City, such assets are either disposed of if it
is determined there is no value, or sold for an immaterial amount. Useful lives vary from 20
to 50 years for land improvements and buildings, 20 years for infrastructure, and 5 to 30
years for machinery, equipment and vehicles. Capital assets not being depreciated include
land and construction in progress.

Government-wide financial statements report unearned revenue in ‘connection  with
resources that have been received, but not yet earned. Governmental funds report
unearned revenue in connecticn with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be

- available to liquidate liabilities af the current period and resources that have been received,

but not yet earned.

Delinquent property taxes receivable, less any delinquent taxes that are to be received
within 60 days, are recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial
statements because they are riot available to finance the current year operations of the City.
Deferred inflows of resources reported in the debt service fund represents special
assessments receivable. :

10) In the governmeni-wide finandiai statements and proprietary fund-type financial statements,

long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position, Debt premiums and discounts are netted against debt payable and debt issuance
costs are recognized as an outflow of resources in the period incurred. On the government-
wide and proprietary fund type statement of activities, unamortized debt premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt. The governmental fund
financial statements report debt premiums and discounts as other financing sources and
uses, separately from the face amount of the debt issued. Debt issuance costs are reported
as debt service expenditures. The long-term debt consists primarily of general obligation
bonds payable, revenue bonds, a general obligation revenue note, State loan, notes
payable, severance payable, and other postemployment benefit obligation.

11) Deferred inflows of resources grepresent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future

period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
City has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SiGNIFI?CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds
report unavailable revenues from two sources; property taxes, which are reported in the
general fund and special assessments, which are reported in the debt service fund. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the
amounts become available.

12) Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any
long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported as
restricted in the government-wide financial statement when there are limitations imposed on
their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations
of other governments. :

In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the
government-wide financial statements. Fund balances of the governmental funds represent
the difference between the current assets and deferred outflows of resources, and current
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Fund balances of the governmental funds are
classified as follows: f

Nonspendable—amounts %that cannot be spent either because they are in
nonspendable form, such as inventory and prepaid items, or because they are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted—amounts that§ can be spent only for specific purposes because of
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed—amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision
making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or
rescinded only through orcinances or resolutions approved by the City Council.

Assigned—amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The City Council
or an individual or committee authorized by the City Council may assign amounts for
specific purposes. :

Unassigned—all other spéandab!e amounts. The General Fund should be the only
fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When
an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City Council has
provided otherwise in its comrnitment or assignment actions. '
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13) The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

F. Revenues and Expenditures§

1) The property tax calendar in WMinnesota follows the calendar year. Property tax levies are
certified to the County Auditor in December of each year for collection from taxpayers in
May and October of the following calendar year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection
agents for all property taxes. The County spreads all levies over taxable property. Property
taxes become a lien on the property the following January 1. The County generally remits
taxes to the City at periodic intarvals as they are collected. A portion of property taxes levied
is paid by the State of Minnesota through various tax credits, which are included in revenue
from state sources in the finansial statements.

Federal, state, and other revenues are reported under the legal and contractual
requirements of the individual programs and are classified into essentially two types of
revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose before any amounts
will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based on expenditures recorded.
in the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure, and the
resources are recorded as reviznue at the time of receipt or earlier if they are available.

2) City employees earn vacation and sick leave based on years of service and union and
employment contracts. Vacation time must be used annually. A liability for unused vacation
is recognized in the government-wide and fund financial statements. A percentage of
accumulated unused sick leave will be paid as severance pay upon retirement and is
accrued in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQG}IVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City's funds are combined (pooled) and invested to the extent available in various
investments authorized by Minnesota statutes. This pool functions essentially as a demand
account for all participating funds, Each fund’s portion of this pool is disptayed on the financial
statements as “cash and cash equivalents and investments” and “restricted cash and cash
equivalents”. Several funds hold cash separate from the cash pool.

“‘Cash and cash equivalents”, ‘?'investments” and ‘“restricted cash and cash equivalents”
recorded are comprised of: :

Primary Component
Government Unit EDA
Petty Cash $ 500 $ -
Cash 3,678,491 707,077
investments 2,140,648 -
Total $_5819.639 $_.. 107,077
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQU?NALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution,
the City will not be able to recover its deposits. The City has a formal deposit policy for custodial
credit risk, which requires the City to obtain collateral for all uninsured amounts of deposit.

The City maintains deposits at financial institutions authorized by the City Council. Minnesota
statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or coliateral. The
market value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by
insurance or bonds. State statutes authorize the types of securities which may be pledged as
collateral and require that those securities be held in safekeeping by the City or in a financial
institution other than that furnishing the collateral. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’s
deposits was $3,678,491; the bank balance was $3,695,102. At year end, the City’s bank
balances were entirely insured o- collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution’s agent in the City's name. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Mountain Iron
EDA's deposits, which includes cash, was $707,077; the bank balance was $707,077. At year-
end, the Mountain lron EDA’s pank balances were entirely insured or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s agent in the Mountain lron EDA’s name.

Investments

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or securities that
are in the possession of an outsice party. The City has a formal investment policy for custodial
credit risk, which permits brokers to hold City investments only to the extent of SIPC coverage.
Securities purchased for the Caty that exceed SIPC coverage shall be transferred to the City’s
custodian.

Credit Risk and Concentration of cf';redit Risk

The City has a formal investment policy for credit risk or concentration of credit risk. State
statutes authorize the City to invest in qualified repurchase agreements, obligations of the U.S.
government, obligations of the State of Minnesota or its municipalities, shares of certain
investment companies, banker's acceptance notes, commercial paper and guaranteed
investment contracts. Credit risk i5 the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligation. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one
issuer and, as of December 31 2014, had no investments in any issuer (other than U.S.
government or U.S. government guaranteed obligations) that exceeded five percent of total
investments. The City has invested $390,372 in Federal Home Loan Banks Fixed Rate Bonds.
At December 31, 2014, the bond*; were rated as AAA by Moody's and AA+ by 8 & P. The City
has $1,057,078 invested in certificates of deposit at Morgan Stanley and $681,552 invested in
certificates of deposit at Northland Securities.

Interest Rate Risk

The City has a formal mvestment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair vaiug losses arising from increasing interest rates.
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NOTE 3 - LOANS RECEIVABLE
The Mountain lron EDA is involved in ecoéwomic development projects. Several businesses received revolving

foans from Mountain fron EDA in 2014 §and prior years. The unpaid principal balance on these loans at
December 31, 2014 was $105,821 and is rgecorded as loans receivable in the Mountain iron EDA general fund.

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended D{ecember 31, 2014, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions - Transfers Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 409300 % - % -8 - % 409,300
Construction in progress ; 1:124.149 -~ 1,449,931 (925.888) . {433.820) 1,214,372
Total capital assets, not being depreciated . 1,533,449  1,449.931 (925.888) - _(433,820) 1,623.672
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 1,081,847 - - - 1,081,847
Buildings 3,497 243 12,718 - - 3,509,961
infrastructure 8,401,773 899,692 - - 9,301,465
Machinery and equipment 1,026,396 48,454 (5,323) - 1,087,527
Licensed vehicles 2.194 692 110,095 (65.326) {8,598) 2,230,863
Total capital assets, being depreciated 16,201,951 1,068,959 {70,649 {8,598y 17,191,663
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (333,967} (49,736) ~ - {383,703)
Buildings {1,068,698) {69,934) - - (1,138,632)
Infrastructure (4174,779)  (289,876) - - (4,464,455)
Machinery and egquipment (486,428) (569.140) 5323 - (540,245}
Licensed vehicles (1,832.377) (86,609} 65,326 - (1,853,660}
Total accumulated depreciation (7,896.249) ~ _(555,095) 70,849 - (8,380,695}
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 8,305,702 513,864 - (8,598) 8,810,968
Governmental activities capital assets, net $..9,839.151 $1,963795 $.(925888) $. (442418 $.10,434 640
Businegs-type activities
Capital agsets, not being-depreciated:
lLand $ 28370 % - % - % - & 26,370
Capital assets; being depreciated:
Building 6,508,832 - - 433,820 7.342,652
infrastructure 9,025,736 . - - 9,025,736
Machinery and equipment 655,328 4172 {2,083} s 657,417
Licensed vehicles 830.849 213,046 (178,068} 8,698 876425
Total capital assets, being depreciated 17,420,745 217.218 (178150 442,418 17.902.230
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building (3,323,906)  {146,458) - - (3,470,385)
infrastructure (5,182,795 (142.220) - - {5,325,015)
Machingry and equipment (590,823) (33,128) 2,083 - (621,869)
Licensed vehicles (661.072) 64,311 170514 - (554,889)
Total accumulated depreciation (9,758,597  (386,118) 172,897 - (9.972.118)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 7,662,148 (168,900} (5.554) 442.418 7930112
Business-type activities capital assets, net  $.7,688518 $.(168900) 3 __{ $_7.956.482
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Depreciation expense was chargéd to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 57,420
Public safety 45,930
Streets 375,252
Culture and recreation 76.493
Total depreciation expens:a-
governmental activities $._555,095
Business-type activities :
Electric utility $ 47142
Water treatment 83,305
Wastewater treatment 147,730
Refuse removal and recycling 39,643
Mountain Manor Apartments 68,298
Total depreciation expense -
business-type activities $_386.118

Discretely presented componenf: unit;
Mountain Iron EDA capital asset agtivity for the year ended December 31, 2014, is as follows:

Balance Balance
01/01/14 Additions Deletions 1213114
Governmental activities :
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $..25332586 § - % - $. 2533266
Capital assets, being depreciated: :
Buildings 3,608,345 - - 3,608,345
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {36,083) (72,187 - (108.250)
Total capital assets, being depreciatad, net 3.572.282 {72.167) - 3.500.095

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 6105518 S__ (72167 $ . $..8033.351

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The City issued general obligatior: bonds to finance the purchase of major capital items and the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities or improvements. Bonded indebtedness has
also been entered into to advance refund general obligation bonds and water revenue bonds.
General obligation notes have baen issued for business-type activities and are being repaid
from the applicable resources. The water revenue refunding bonds are payable solely from the
net revenues of the Water Treatment Enterprise Fund. The Mountain ifron Housing and
Redevelopment Authority entered into a mortgage note for the construction of a housing facility.
This note is guaranteed by the City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota. For governmental activities,
claims and judgments and severance payable are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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The Mountain lron EDA entered intéz a state loan for the construction of a manufacturing facility.
This loan is considered an obligation of the Mountain fron EDA and will be repaid with net rent

revenues.

Components of long-term debt are ?as follows:

Issue

_ interest Original Final Principal
__Date Rates issue Maturity ~ Qutstanding
Governmental activities
General Obligation Bontls
2012 Refunding 14/01/2012  1.0-1.35% 3 840000 02/01/2020 $ 655,000
2005 Library Upgrade 06/01/2005  4.125% $ 300,000 08/01/2035 253,000
2007 improvements 09/11/2007 = 4.0-465% 31 455,000 02/01/2028 895,000
Governmental activities long-term debt 1,803,000
Business-type activities |
Revenue Bonds ‘
2009 Water Revenue
Refunding Bonds 09/01/2009  1.5-4.0% $ 650,000 12/01/2022 450,000
General Obligation Revenue Notes |
2009 PFA Wastewater :
Revenue Notes 10/20720089 2.25% $ 599,250 08/20/2029 473,000
Notes Payable
1980 Rural Development 09/04/1980 3.61% $ 819,370  090/1/2030 418,849
1981 Rural Development 01/16/1981 3.61% $ 320630 010/1/2031 164,514
Total Notes Payable 583,363
Business-type activities long-ter@n debt 1,506,363
Total primary government Iong-ttiarm debt 3,309,363
Discretely presented component utftit
EDA
State Loan
2010 IRRRB 3,546,854
Total reporting entity $.6,856.017
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Long-term debt activity for the yea%r ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

5 Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
_Ealance Additions = Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities :
Bonds Payable
2012 GO Refunding $ 840,000 % - % 185000 $ 655000 $ 185,000
2005 GO Library Upgrade £ 260,000 - 7,000 253,000 8,000
2007 GO improvement £.000.000 - 105,000 895,000 110,000
Governmental activities -
long-term debt 2,100,000 - 297,000 1,803,000 303,000
Business-type activities
Bonds Payable
2009 Water Revenue
Refunding Bonds 500,000 - 50,000 450,000 50,000
Revenue Notes
2009 GO PFA Wastewater 499,000 - 26,000 473,000 27.000
Notes Payable
1980 Rural Development - 428,521 - 9,872 418,849 9,909
1981 Rural Development . 168,150 - 3636 164,514 3.853
Total Notes Payable . 596,671 - 13,308 583,363 13,762
Business-type activities - ;
long-term debt 1,595.671 - 89.308 1,506,363 80,762
Total primary government 3,695,671 - 386,308 _ 3.309.363 393,762
Discretely presented component unit
EDA
State loan ‘
2010 IRRRB 3,546,661 - 7 _3,546.654 -
Total reporting entity $.7.242.332 § _- $_ 386315 $.6,856017 $__ 393762
Minimum annual principal and interest payments required to retire long-term debt are as
follows; i
Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Government-wide
December 31 Principal interest Principal interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 303000 $ 52779 $ 90,762 $ 46266 $ 393762 $ 99,045
2016 303,000 46,171 91,123 43,964 394,123 90,135
2017 199,000 -~ = 39,879 97,493 41,652 296,493 81,531
2018 198,000 | 33,857 98,873 38,481 297,873 72,338
2019 120,000 - | 29,387 99,262 35,277 219,262 64,664
2020-2024 322,000 -~ 109,158 403,533 127,525 725,533 236,683
2025-2029 264,000 46,028 248,231 83,349 512,231 129,377
2030-2034 76,000 . 16,170 377.086 6,473 453,086 22,643
2035-2038 17.000 : 701 - - 17,000 701

Total $.1,803,000 $_.374,130 $.1,506.363 $_ 422987 $.3.300363 $_ 797117
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

No interest was capitalized during 32014 for the City or Mountain Iron EDA. Interest incurred and
charged to expense totaled $100,774 for the City and $74,993 for Mountain lron EDA.

Pledged Revenue

Governmental Funds

The City issued $840,000 GO refundmg bonds of which the proceeds were used to prepay the
outstanding principal of the City's $1,645,000 GO crossover refunding bonds of 2005. Principal
and interest paid in the current year was $192,983. Principal and interest to maturity in 2020 to
be paid from a combination of special assessments levied upon the benefited property and ad
valorem property taxes fotal $672, 354

The City issued $1,455,000 GO mprovement bonds to finance a portion of the costs of local
public improvements within the City in 2007, Principal and interest paid for the current year was
$145,510. At December 31, 2014 principal and interest on the bonds to be paid to maturity in
2028 from special assessments ievxed upon the benefitted property and ad valorem taxes
totaled $1,120,177. .

Enterprise Funds ‘
The City has pledged net revenu&s of the Water Treatment Enterprise Fund to pay principal

and interest on the $650,000 general obligation water revenue refunding bonds issued in 2009.
Proceeds from these bonds were used to refund the $650,000 general obligation water revenue
bonds issued in 2002, which were used to update the water treatment plant. Principal and
interest paid for the current year was $67,800. At December 31, 2014, principal and interest to
maturity in 2022 to be paid from péedged future revenues totaled $532,525.

The City has pledged net reverues of the Wastewater Treatment Enterprise Fund to pay
principal and interest on the $599,250 general obligation revenue note issued in 2009.
Proceeds from this note were used to update the wastewater treatment plant. Principal and
interest paid for the current year was $37,218. At December 31, 2014, principal and interest to
maturity in 2029 to be paid from piedged future revenues totaled $562,583.

EDA

Component Unit ~

Mountain Iron EDA entered into a State loan agreement for the construction of a manufacturmg
facility on June 18, 2010. The loan settlement occurred on February 15, 2011. The maturity
date of the $3 600,000 loan is January 15, 2037. Mountain Iron EDA shall pay to the State by
January 15" of each calendar year until the maturity date, payments in the full amount of net
lease revenue of the preceding calendar year. In 2013, Mountain lron EDA received the final
loan proceeds to be drawn from the loan for a total amount of $3,546,661.
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY
The composition of interfund balaﬁces as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Due to/from primary government afnd component unit -

Receivable entity Payable entity Amount
Primary government: Component unit:

General Fund Mountain {ron Economic
f Development Authority $._.10472

Interfund transfers for the year enc?ied December 31, 2014 consisted of the following:

Transfers in

Debt City Projects
Service Capital
Fund Projects Fund Total
Transfers out
General Fund $ 350,000 $ 487079 $ 847,079
Electric Utility Enterprise Fund 15,000 - 15,000
Water Treatment Enterprise Fund 28,200 - 28,200
Refuse Removal and Recycling
Enterprise Fund 10,000 - 10,000

_ $_403200 $__497.079 $__900.279
Transfers are used to. 1) move Eevenues from the General Fund to the City Projects Capital

Projects Fund for authorized projects, and 2) move receipts from funds collecting receipts to the
Debt Service Fund as the debt service payments come due.
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NOTE 7 - FUND EQUITY

As of December 31, 2014, fund ba%ﬁances are comprised of the following:

Other
Governmental
Fund -
Charitable
Gambling
Debt City Projects Special
General Service Capital Revenue
wiFund Fund Projects Fund Fund Total
Restricted:
Debt service $__ - $.1.250623 § - % - $.1,259,623
Assigned:
Cash flow :250,000 - - - 250,000
Insurance 785,575 - - - 785,575
Buildings . 785,575 - - - 785,575
Rate stabilization . 785,575 - - - 785,575
Capital projects - - 22,608 “ 22,608
Community contributions - - - 7.481 7,481
Total assigned 2,808,725 - 22,608 7481 2636814

Total fund balances sg@gg;g $.1,250623 $__ 22608 § 7,481 $.3.896.437

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City and the Mountain lron EDA are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft
of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. To cover these risks of loss, except for faithful performance of employee
duties, the City and Mountain Iron EDA, as allowed under state statutes, joined the League of
Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and insurance program for its member cities. The City and Mountain lron EDA
pay annual premiums to the Trus: for insurance coverage and retain the risk for the deductible
portions of the insurance. The League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust is self-sustaining
through member premiums and rainsures through commercial companies for claims in excess
of the limits set by the Trustees. The City and Mountain lron EDA carry commercial insurance
for faithful performance of employee duties. There were no significant increases or reductions
in insurance from the previous year. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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NOTE 9 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT

The Mountain fron Economic Dexéfelopment Authority is the administering authority for the
following tax increment financing district:

Tax Increment Financing District No. 14

Redevelopment project district :
established in: -
Economic development district '

established in: 2008
Anticipated last tax increment year:g 2021
Original net tax capacity: $_.. 1,062
Current net tax capacity: $__94.450
Fiscal disparity deduction $_.(24.032)

Captured net tax capacity :
retained by Authority: $__69,356

Total bonds issued 5
Tax increment bonds 3 -

Amounts redeemed S

Outstanding bonds at 12/31/14 S -

NOTE 10 - REFUND OF TAX KNC:‘;REMENT DISTRICT NO. 13

in 2014, the Mountain lron EDA refunded St. Louis County $6,074 of Tax Increment Financing
District No. 13 revenue received and recorded in prior years. The refund is mostly due to
administrative costs exceeding the maximum allowed by the District's plan. Because Tax
Increment Financing District No. 13 was not presented in the prior year, the refund of tax
increment financing is presented as an expenditure of the Mountain iron EDA General Fund.
The result is the same net effect as if Tax Increment Financing District No. 13 received a
transfer from the General Fund and a tax increment financing refund was recorded as an
expenditure from the District. ‘
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NOTE 11 - OTHER COMMITMENT%S AND CONTINGENCIES

Grants

The City participates in grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of
the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and
adjustment by the grantor agencies, therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with
the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required
and the collectibility of any related receivable at December 31, 2014, may be impaired. in the
opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the
rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been
recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

Electric Utility Commitment ,
The City entered intoc an agreement with Minnesota Power to supply the City with a portion of its
total electric requirements. This agreement is in effect until December 31, 2019. Contract prices
for this electric supply are adjusted throughout the contract period as set forth in the
agreement.

The City of Mountain iron, Minnesota exercised its right under a 1987 order by the Minnesota
Public Utilities Commission, to service and maintain their territory which the City of Virginia
Department of Public Utilities had been servicing and maintaining. In exchange for the service
territory, the City of Mountain fron paid the City of Virginia Department of Public Utilities
$100.000 at December 31, 2002, and entered into a long-term contract for electric service from
the City of Virginia Department of Public Utilities effective January 2, 2003. This agreement is in
effect untit December 31, 2020.

Construction Projects 5
The City had two outstanding construction projects as of December 31, 2014. The projects are
evidenced by contractual commitrents with contractors and include:

; Commitments
Project Spent to Date Remaining
County Road 102 Utilitizs $ 592,627 5 31,191
2014 Street Improvements $ 301,347 $ 15860

The projects are commitments of ?the general fund and are being funded by grants and general
fund revenues.

NOTE 12 - JOINT VENTURES

Tri-Cities Biosolids Disposal Authority

The City is a member in a joint authority agreement with the Cities of Eveleth and Gilbert for the
operation of the Tri-Cities Biosolids Disposal Authority, which owns and operates a biosolids
truck for the member cities. Each city appoints one member to the Tri-Cities Biosolids Disposal
Authority which oversees the daily operations.
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NOTE 12 - JOINT VENTURES (CG?NT!NUED)

Upon termination, if the expenses and liabilities of the Authority exceed the proceeds received
from the sale, the loss shall be divided between the members on the same basis as member
contributions to capital and operztion cost. If upon termination the assets of the Authority
exceed its liabilities, the net proceeds from the sale thereof shall be divided between the
members on the same basis as the contributions to capital and operation cost.

Each member city contributes to the budget of the Authority based on actual loads hauled
during the previous year. The City of Mountain lron's contribution to the Authority's budget
during 2014 was $20,412. Complete financial information can be obtained from the Tri-Cities
Biosolids Disposal Authority, Eveleth, Minnesota 55734.

Biosolids Disposal Authority |
The City is also a member in a joint authority agreement with the Cities of Eveleth, Gilbert, and
Virginia for the operation of the Biosolids Disposal Site Authority, which owns and manages the
Biosolids Site property. Each city appoints one member to the Biosolids Disposal Site Authority
which oversees the operations.

Upon termination, if the expenses and liabilities of the Authority exceed the proceeds received
from the sale, the loss shall be divided between the members on the same basis as member
contributions to capital and operation cost. If upon termination the assets of the Authority
exceed its liabilities, the net proceeds from the sale thereof shall be divided between the
members on the same basis as the contributions to capital and operation cost.

Each member city contributes to the budget of the Authority based on the per capita reported in
the 2010 Census. The City of Mountain Iron’s contribution to the Authority's budget during 2014
was $6,158. Complete financial information can be obtained from the Biosolids Disposal Site
Authority, Eveleth, Minnesota 55734

Quad Cities Joint Recreational Authority

The City is a member in a joint powers agreement with the Cities of Eveleth, Gilbert, and
Virginia to cooperatively acquire property, construct a building, maintain the property and
building and operate the Quad Cities Joint Recreational Authority. The Autherity is governed by
nine commissioners; two commigsioners are appointed by each member city. One at-large
commissioner is appointed by the governing board.

in the event of dissolution and fcllowing the payment of all outstanding obligations, assets of
the Authority will be distributed between the members in direct proportion to their cumulative
annual membership contributions. If those obligations exceed the assets of the Authority, the
net deficit of the Authority wilt be charged to and paid by the then existing members in direct
proportion to their cumulative annual membership contributions.

The City of Mountain lron's comribution to the Authority’s budget during 2014 was $6,577.
Complete financial information can be obtained from the Quad Cities Recreation Center,
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734,
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NOTE 13 - SEVERANCE BENEFIT;S: AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Upon retirement, the City provides most retirees a severance amount based on accumulated
unused sick leave hours and rate of pay at the date of retirement, as established by contracts
with bargaining units and other employment agreements. The agreements establish the terms
for this severance amount, which may vary between bargaining units or employee groups.
During 2014, the City did not have any expenditures for this benefit.

All employees, who have accumulated sick leave days to their credit at the time of retirement or
death, or at such time that they become totally permanently disabled, shall be credited with an
amount of sick leave equivalent to the current value of their unused sick leave less the amount
paid as outlined in the above paragraph. The monetary amount shall be placed in a separate
and special fund for each such affected employee for the sole purpose of providing continuation
of the retiree’s, disabled employee's, or deceased employee's and their dependents’
hospitalization and medical insurance coverage until each such employee's separate fund is
exhausted. Severance activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Balance Balance

5 12131413 Additions Reductions 12/31114
Governmental activities % 63330 $ 3903 $ (9,206) $ 58027
Business-type activities 16,778 8,316 (2.478) 22,614

Total Primary Government ~ $__80106 $_12219 5_(11684) $_80.641

The City offers a Health Care Savings Plan (HCSP) to all eligible employees. HCSP is an
employer-sponsored program that allows employees to save money, tax-free, to use upon
termination of employment to pay for eligible health care expenses. Amounts to be put into the
accounts must be negotiated or agreed to by both the bargaining unit and employer and written
into the collective bargaining agreement or included in an individual contract for those employees
not covered by a bargaining unit. Employer contributions into eligible employee's accounts were
$19,811 for the year ended Decernber 31, 2014,

NOTE 44 - OTHER POSTEMPLdYMENT BENEFITS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 requires
governments to account for and report the annual cost of other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) and outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB based on actuarial
valuations performed in accordance with parameters established by GASB. GASB Statement
No, 45 requires the City to obtain an actuarial valuation once every three years because their
plan has membership of 100 or less. The City had an actuarial valuation performed for January
1, 2012; the information in this note is based on that actuarial valuation.

Plan Description
The City operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan that provides postemployment heaith

insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses. There are 20 active and 13 retired
members in the plan as of January 1, 2012, Benefits and eligibility are established and
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NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLO‘?IMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

amended through contracts with bargaining units or other employment contracts. The City
subsidizes the premium rates of the retirees by allowing them to participate in the plan at
reduced or blended (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees.
These rates provided an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarnial basis, their
current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the plan on average than
those of active employees. Additionally, certain retirees receive insurance at a lower (explicitly
subsidized) premium rate than active employees.

Funding Policy
The City has not advance-funded or established a funding methodology.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution {ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components for the City's annual DPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation.

12/31/14

Normal cost $ 110,828
Amortization of unfunded

actuarial accrued liability. 351,371
Interest to the end of the year 18,488

Annual required contribution 480,688
Adjustment to ARC (36.377)

Annusl OPEB cost (expeﬁnse) 444 311
Contributions made includgmg

implicit rate subsidy (200,299)

Increase in net OPEB ob@tigation 244,012
Net OPEB obligation, begnning of year 1,971,697

Net OPEB obligation, ené:i of year $_2,215709

The City’s annual OPEB cost, thée percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation as of December 31, 2014 and the two preceding years were as
follows:

Contribution  OPEB Cost % of ARC OPEB

Year Ended OPEBCosi _(ARC) Contributed Contributed ~Obligation
12/312014 § 244,012 § 444311 ' 200,209 ~ 451%  $2215709
120312013 § 243340 § 437,684 $ 104,344  44.4%  $1,971,607

1213112012 § 242(095 $ 431593 $§ 189,498 43.9% $1,728,357
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Funded Status and Funding Proéress

The funding status of the plan as of January 1, 2012, the date of the latest actuarial valuation,
was as follows;

UAAL as a

Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded  Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroli Payroll
Date Assets (a) {b). (b-3) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc)

17412012 $ - % 5,92.8,255 $ 5928255  0.0% $1.289,749 459.6%

The required schedule of fundin§ progress immediately following the notes to the financial
statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probabiliy of occurrence of events far into the future, such as
assumptions about future employment and terminations, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for
financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan provisions, as understood by the
employer and participating membars, and include the type of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
participating members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was
used. The medical plan was changed to provide age-based premiums and post-Medicare
coverage is provided through a Medicare Supplement. The actuarial assumptions include a rate
of 4% to discount expected liabilities to the valuation date. The initial healthcare trend rate was
10% reduced by 5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5% after 10 years. The 2000 United States
Life Tables for Males and United States Life Tables for Females was used. The UAAL is being
amortized using the level dollar arnount over a 30 year open period.
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NOTE 15 - DEFINED BENEFIT PE%NS!ON PLANS ~ STATEWIDE
A. Plan Description |

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Mountain lron, Minnesota, are
covered by defined benefit plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association
of Minnesota (PERA). PERA admiinisters the General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF)
which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement plan. This plan is established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356.

GERF members belong to either ?the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan
members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members
must participate in the Coordinated Plan.

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to
survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established by state statute, and vest
after five years of credited service. The defined retirement penefits are based on a member's
highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of
credit at termination of service,

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’'s Coordinated and Basic Plan members.

- The retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a
level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan
member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 2.7
percent for each remaining year. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan memberis 1.2
percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year.
Under Method 2. the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan
members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For all
GERF members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full
annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 90. Normal retirement age is 83 for
Basic and Coordinated members hired prior to July 1, 1989. Normal retirement age is the age
for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated members hired on or after
July 1, 1989. A reduced retirement annuity is also available to eligible members seeking early
retirement. ?

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement. A single-life
annuity is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree--no survivor annuity is
payable. There are also various types of joint and survivor annuity options available which will
be payable over joint lives. Members may also leave their contributions in the fund upon
termination of public service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Refunds
of contributions are available at any time to members who leave public service, but before
retirement benefits begin. :

The benefit provisions stated in ﬁhe previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions
and apply to active plan participants.
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NOTE 15 - DEFINED BENEFIT PEE}@S!ON PLANS ~ STATEWIDE (CONTINUED)

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for GERF. That report may be obtained on the Internet at
www.mnpera.org, by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive #200, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55103-
2088 or by calling (651) 296-7460 ar 1-800-652-8026.

B. Funding Policy

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. These
statutes are established and amended by the state legislature. The City makes annual
contributions to the pension plans aqual to the amount required by state statutes. GERF Basic
Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.10% and 6.25%,
respectively, of their annual covered salary in 2014. In 2014, the City of Mountain lron was
required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll. 11.78% for Basic
Plan members and 7.25% for Coordinated Plan members. The City’s contributions to the Public
Employees Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were
$93 655 $89.337, and $90,686, respectively. The City's contributions were equal to the
contractually required contributions for each year as set by state statute, Contribution rates will
increase on January 1, 2015 in the Coordinated Plan (6.5% for members and 7.5% for

employers).

NOTE 16 - DEFINED CONTRIBUT}ION PLAN

Three council members of the City of Mountain lron are covered by the Public Employees
Defined Contribution Plan (PEDCP), a muiltiple-employer deferred compensation plan
administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). The
PEDCP is a tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all
contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax deferred until time of withdrawal.

Plan benefits depend solely on arounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less
administrative expenses., Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions,
including the employee and employer contribution rates for those qualified personnel who elect
to participate. An eligible elected official who decides o participate contributes 5 percent of
salary which is matched by the elected official's employer. Employees who are paid for their
services may elect to make member contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer
share. Employer and employee ccntributions are combined and used to purchase shares in one
or more of the seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment Fund. For
administering the plan, PERA receives 2 percent of employer contributions and twenty-five
hundredths of one percent of the assets in each member’s account annually.

Total contributions made by the C%ity of Mountain lron during fiscal year 2014 were!

; Percentage of
Amount Covered Payroll Required

Employees  Employer Employees  Employer Rates
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NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 21, 2015, the City paiél off the USDA Rural Development general obligation bonds
of 2005 in the amount of $245,858. The proceeds from these bonds were used for library
upgrades and had an interest rate of 4.125 percent and the maturity date was August 1, 2035.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

5 GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Actual Variance with
Amounts, Einal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,332,789 $ . 1,332,789 $ 1,525,082 % 192,293
Licenses and permits 30,000 30,000 38,835 8,835
intergovernmental 2,236,590 2,236,580 2,378,363 141,773
Charges for services 155,000 155,000 173,521 18,521
Fines 12,000 12,000 13,531 1,531
investmentincome 5,000 5.000 12,943 7.843
TOTAL REVENUES 3,771,379 3,771,379 4,142 275 370,896
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 1,085,800 1,085,800 983,904 101,898
Public safety 661,500 661,500 688,989 {27,489)
Streets 735,000 735,000 675,939 59,061
Culture and recreation 442 000 442 000 459,862 {17,862)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,924,300 2,924,300 2,808,694 115,606
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 847,079 847,079 1,333,581 486,502

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (847,079) (847,079) (847,079) -
- - 5,809 5.809

Sale of capital assets
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (847,079) (847,079) (841,270 5,809
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE . - 492,311 492,311
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 2,114,414 2,114,414 2114414 -

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 2114414 $ 2114414 $ . 2,606,725 $ 492,311

See notes éto required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PinGRESS EOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
Yeaffr Ended December 31, 2014

UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) Unfunded AAL Ratio Payroll Payroli
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (€) {b-a)/(c)

11112012 $ - $ 5,928?255 $ 5,928,255 0.0% $ 1,289,748 459.60%

1/1/2009 $ - $ 7‘7463,539 $ 7,746,539 0.0% $ 944,685 820.01%

NOTE TO THE SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR PQ’STEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

NOTE 1 - VALUATIONS

The City has only presented two valuatioéns because only
GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Repo
Other Than Pensions.

50

two have been performed since the City adopted
rting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits




CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

NOTE TO REQ@!RED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
-+ December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - BUDGETING

The City Administrator prepares & proposed budget for the City's funds on the same basis as
the fund financial statements. The Csty Council adopts an annual budget for the fiscal year for
all of the City’s funds. .

Legal budgetary control is at the %fund account level, management control is exercised at line-
item levels. Budget appropriationsilapse at year end, if unexpended.

Budgeted amounts are as ongmaliy adopted or as amended by the City Council. The Schedule

of Revenues, Expendntures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual ~ General Fund
presents a comparison of budgetary data to actual results.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

 GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
TAXES :
General property j $ - 1,479,597
Mineral rents and royalties f 21,775
Franchise 23,710
TOTAL TAXES ; 1,525,082
LICENSES AND PERMITS 38,835
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
State :
Local-government aid _ 1,281,580
Market value credit ; 964
Taconite production 561626
Taconite municipal aid 382,158
Mining effects 110,677
PERA aid 5 4,529
Police aid 36.:819
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 378,363
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government :
Rent ; 15,127
Other reimbursements 114,962
Culture and recreation :
Recreation fees : 6,094
Campground fees ; 37.338
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 173,521
FINES :
Fines-and forfeits f 12,796
Administrative fines 735
TOTAL FINES ' 13,531
INVESTMENT INCOME 12,943
TOTAL REVENUES 4,142,275
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

; GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONT%NUED)
Ygar Ended December 31, 2014

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
GENERAL GOVERNMENT :
Mayor and council ? 3 22,435
Administration § 503,728
Elections 4,206
ASSEBSSOr ; 16,198
Retiree's insurance 3 96,799
Donations and contributions f 9,077
Other : 97,429
Buildings ; 201,771
Planning and-zoning 32,261
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 983,904
PUBLIC SAFETY
Sheriff ; 538,935
Fire | 104,807
Animal control ; 18,212
Civil defense 27,035
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY o 688,989
STREETS f 675,939
CULTURE AND RECREATION |
Library : 195,390
Recreation } 197,297
Campgrounds f 67,175
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 459,862

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5 2,808,694

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 1.333.581

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out (847,079)
Sale of capital assets ‘ 5,809
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING souacss (USES) (841,.270)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 492,311
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 2114414
FUND BALANCE -DECEMBER 31 $ 2606725
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CiTY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF ¢ OURCES AND USES OF PUBLIC FUNDS
FOR |\l]0UI\!’I‘A!NE IRON TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 14
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Accounted
for in
Prior Years Current
Budget Restated Year

SOURCES OF FUNDS :
Tax increment revenue $ 1025590 % 78819 3 81,319
Transfers from EDA General Fund - 6,022 -

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,025,590 84,841 81,319
USES OF FUNDS
Site improvements and preparatno 1 costs 1,025,590 70,937 73,187
Administrative costs : - 11,768 1,521
Transfers to EDA General Fund - 6,022 -

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 1,025,590 88,727 74708

DISTRICT BALANCE $ - §___(3.886) S$___ 6611
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Walker,

Cllte@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

Ha h QToEl 7O Box 960 + 225 1st Striet North, Suite 2400, Virginia, Minnesota 55792
B 013-749-4880 « FAX 218-749-8528

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component unit, each major fund and the remaining fund information of the City of
Mountain Iron, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related
notes o the financial statements which collectively comprise the City of Mountain lron,
Minnesota’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 27, 2015.
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
Mountain Manor Apartments Enterprise Fund, as described in our report on the City of
Mountain fron, Minnesota's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the
other auditors’ testing of interna control over financial reporting or compliance and other
matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Eleporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of
Mountain lron, Minnesota’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Mountain iron, Minnesota's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Mountain iron,
Minnesota’s internal control. :

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in infernal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, msstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the
accompanying schedule of findirgs and responses as item 2014-002 to be a material
weakness. - 5

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses as item 20°4-001 to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Mountain lron, Minnesota’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Minnesota Legal Compliance

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the
State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. §6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be
tested:  contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public
indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment
financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the
City of Mountain lron, Minnesota failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal
Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions. However, our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional
procedures, other matters may hzve come to our attention regarding the City of Mountain Iron,
Minnesota’s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

Other Matters

We noted certain matters that we§ reported to management of City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota
in a separate letter dated May 27, 2015, included under this cover.

City of Mountain lron, Minnesotéa’s Response to Findings
City of Mountain lron, Minnesota‘% response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. City of Mountain lron, Minnesota’s

response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements, and, accordingly, we 2xpress no opinion on it.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose. ;

Wathu, Loy + Wil LLE

Virginia, Minnesota
May 27, 2015
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

SCHEDUL?E OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-001, SEGREGATION OF DU?TIES

Condition
Due to the limited number of personnel within the City’s administration office, the segregation of
accounting functions necessary to ensure adeguate internal accounting control is not possible.

Criteria
The concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of individuals is not desirable
from an internal accounting control point of view.

Effect
Because of the weakness in segrsgation of duties, the City has not provided adequate internal
control. ?

Cause

This occurred because of staffing limitations caused by fiscal constraints.

Recommendations

Officials and management of the City should constantly be aware of this condition, attempt to
segregate duties as much as pessible and provide oversight to partially compensate for this
deficiency. ?

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreemént with Audit Finding
There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

2. Actions Planned in Resporse to Finding
The City Administrator wil attempt to monitor transactions and structure the duties of
office personnel to help ensure as much segregation of duties as possible within the City's
staffing limitations and funding constraints.

3. Official Responsible for Ensuring CAP
Craig Wainio, City Administrator, is the official responsible for ensuring this plan.

4. Planned Completion Date 'é’or CAP
The City’s Administrator has been monitoring transactions and reviewing the duties of
office personnel on an ongoing basis.

5.  Plan to Monitor Completiorﬁ of CAP

The City Council recognizes the weakness in segregation of duties and has continually
provided oversight to partiz;any compensate for this deficiency.
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CITY OF MOUNTAIN IRON, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF F‘SINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Ye@ar Ended December 31, 2014

2014-002. LACK OF CONTROL 0‘§VER FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

Condition and Criteria 5
As part of the audit, management requested that the auditor prepare a draft of the City's
financial statements, including the “elated notes to financial statements. Management reviewed,
approved, and accepted responsioility for those financial statements prior to their issuance;
however, management does not possess the technical expertise to comply with governmental
accounting standards. ?

Effect
The potential exists that a material misstatement of the financial statements could occur and
not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

Cause ;
This occurred because of staffing igsmitations caused by fiscal constraints.

Recommendations :
In order to provide controls over the financial statement preparation services at an appropriate
level, we suggest management esigabtish effective review policies and procedures.

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreeme?nt with Audit Finding
There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

2. Actions Planned in Respon?se to Finding

Management has determined that the cost and training involved to review or prepare the
City's financial statements exceeds the benefit that would result.

3. Official Responsible for Enésuring CAP
None - see number 2 above.

4. Planned Completion Date for CAP
None - see number 2 above.

5. Plan to Monitor Completior; of CAP
None — see number 2 above.
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Walker,

Clifel§)@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

SE1aTala Al 7O Box 960 + 225 Ist Straet North, Suite 2400, Virginia, Minnesota 55792
' 218-749-4880  FAX 218-749-8528

MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the City Council
City of Mountain Iron, Minnesota

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Mountain lron,
Minnesota, as of and for the yezr ended December 31, 2014, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (iniernal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control. Accordmgiy, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in internal control other than
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses and matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. A separate letter dated May 27, 2015
included under this cover, contairs our communication of significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in the City’s internal sontrol. This letter does not affect our report dated May 27,
2015, on the financial statements cf the City of Mountain {ron, Minnesota.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have
already discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and
we will be pleased to discuss tk*em in further detail at your convenience, to perform any
additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. Our
comments are summarized as follc,ws

1. The Electric Utility Enterpn .e Fund, Wastewater Treatment Enterprise Fund, and
Mountain Manor Apartments Enterprise Fund each reported an operating loss for
the year ended December 31, 2014. We suggest that the City Council review
these losses and Implemr=nt a plan to make the funds profitable and self-
sufficient. .

During the inventory obser@ratién it was noted that major electric utility items are
stored in an unfenced area outside of the warehouse. We recommend that the
administration consider fercing this area to provide adequate security over the

physical inventory and deter theft, damage, loss or improper use of City assets.



The physical count for electric inventory was missing current cost amounts for
several transformers and transformer pad mounts. We recommend that the
pricing of the physical quantities counted be consistent and well documented:
Persons responsible for pricing should indicate whether the prices are from
sources other than the most recent invoice. Physical inventories should provide a
basis for updating inventory balances and aid in detecting significant inventory
shortages. ?

3. The City budgets transfers between funds for debt service payments, capital
projects and capital asset additions. The General Fund “transfers” are listed as
separate line items with ‘he expenditures on the budget summary report;
however, the Enterprise Funds “transfers’ appear to be included with “capital
outlay” and are not listed as separate line items with the expenditures on the
budget summary report. We recommend that the Enterprise Fund transfers be
listed as separate line items with the expenses to be consistent with the General
Fund transfer presentation, and to aid in the preparation of the note disclosures
to the financial statements. .

4. The City has invested in long-term certificates of deposit with two investment
firms. These investment accounts are carried at market value which may resuit
in an investment loss if not held to maturity. We recommend that the
administration monitor the market value gain or loss and hold the investments to
maturity to avoid an investment loss.

This communication is intended fc;r the information and use of the City Council, management,
and the State of Minnesota, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties. ’

Wathn Mg yNilg LLE

b4

Virginia, Minnesotav
May 27, 2015
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